STATE OF LOUISIANA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
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SA-AE-25-0037
WEST FRASER, INC.
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
The following Settlement Agreement is hereby agreed to between West Fraser, Inc.
(“Respondent™) and the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ” or “the Department™), under
authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act, La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq. (“the Act™).
I
Respondent is a corporation that owns and/or operates a sawmill located in Joyce, Winn
Parish, Louisiana (“the Facility™).
H
On February 1, 2019, the Department issued to Respondent a Notice of Potential Penalty,
Enforcement Tracking No. AE-PP-18-00536 (Exhibit 1).
On December 27, 2019, the Department issued to Respondent a Consolidated Compliance
Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078 (Exhibit 2).
On November 12, 2024, the Department issued to Respondent a Notice of Potential Penalty,

Enforcement Tracking No. AE-PP-24-00312 (Exhibit 3).




The following violations, although not cited in the foregoing enforcement actions, are
included within the scope of this settlement:

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not more
than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement
88 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V9 and Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-
00006-V10, LAC33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. La. R.S.
30:2057(AX2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed a daily block average opacity in excess of (10)
percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. The failure to maintain
the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of Specific
Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V9 and V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to continuously monitor GRP0004/All
Wood-Fired Boilers for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) according to procedures in 40
CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific Requirement
66 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 65 of Title V Air Permit Nos.

3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(c), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in
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LAC 33:11L5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004/All Wood-Fired Boilers
for oxygen by oxygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific
Requirement 65 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 64 of Title V Air
Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana
regulation in LAC 33:1I1.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(2).

The Respondent failed to operate and maintain the continuous monitoring system (CMS) in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan. Specifically, in the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report submitted on March 25, 2020, the Respondent reported deviations of
all wood-fired boilers (GRP0004) at steam load #4 failing to operate and maintain the CMS in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan. These events are violations of Specific
Requirement 50 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 49 of Title V Air
Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7505(d)(4), which language has been adopted as a
Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:1I1.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(AX2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 First
Title V Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Boilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of

Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:1l1.1101.B, LAC
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33:1I1.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of Title V
Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted as a
Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:1I1.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.8. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity for three (3) events by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously
according to procedures in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a
violation of Specific Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d),
which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:1I1.5122.A, LAC
33:1I1.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21,2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V

Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
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percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Boilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of
Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:11.1101.B, LAC
33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON000O4/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by
oXygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess
of ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure
to maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of

Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
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language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC33:111.501.C.4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent
for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers
CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for
not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Speciftc
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C 4,
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R. S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La.
R.8.30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S.

30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

6 SA-AE-25-0037




In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:1H.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Boilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of
Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, LAC33:1IL.1101.B, LAC
33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess
of ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure
to maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2),
which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:11.5122.A, LAC
33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic

Precipitator for by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures in 40

7 SA-AE-25-0037




CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a viclation of Specific Requirement 3
of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has been
adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1)
and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by
oxygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent
for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers
CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for
not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, LAC 33:1Ii.1101.B, LAC
33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(2)(2), which

language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
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R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:II1.5122.A, LAC 33:II1.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not
more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C 4,
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second

Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of ten
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(10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122. A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer systern continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated August 25, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2023 Title V First
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the Electrostatic Precipitator
(ESP), CON0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not more than one
(1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement 5 of
Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-Vi2, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

The Respondent failed to operate and maintain the CMS in accordance with the site-specific
monitoring plan. In correspondence dated August 25,2023, the Respondent submitted the 2023 Title
V First Semiannual Monitoring Report stating the failure to monitor oxygen by oxygen analyzer
system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 20 of Title V

Permit No. 3240-00006-V12, 40 CFR 63.7505(d)(4), which language has been adopted as a
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Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).
III
Respondent denies it committed any violations or that it is liable for any fines, forfeitures
and/or penalties.
v
Nonetheless, Respondent, without making any admission of liability under state or federal
statute or regulation, agrees to pay, and the Department agrees to accept, a payment in the amount of
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($130,000.00), of which Five
Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Eight and 74/100 Dollars ($5,178.74) represents the Department’s
enforcement costs, in settlement of the claims set forth in this Settlement Agreement. The total
amount of money expended by Respondent on cash payments to the Department as described above,
shall be considered a civil penalty for tax purposes, as required by La. R.S. 30:2050.7(E)(1).
v
Respondent further agrees that the Department may consider the inspection report(s), permit
record(s), the Notices of Potential Penalty, Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential
Penalty and this Settlement Agreement for the purpose of determining compliance history in
connection with any future enforcement or permitting action by the Department against Respondent,
and in any such action Respondent shall be estopped from objecting to the above-referenced
documents being considered as proving the violations alleged herein for the sole purpose of
determining Respondent's compliance history.
VI

This Settlement Agreement shall be considered a final order of the Secretary for all purposes,
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including, but not limited to, enforcement under La. R.S. 30:2025(G)(2), and Respondent hereby
waives any right to administrative or judicial review of the terms of this agreement, except such
review as may be required for interpretation of this Settlement Agreement in any action by the
Department to enforce this Settlement Agreement.
VII
This Settlement Agreement is being made in the interest of settling the state's claims and
avoiding for both parties the expense and effort involved in litigation or an adjudicatory hearing. In
agreeing to the compromise and Settlement Agreement, the Department considered the factors for
issuing civil penalties set forth in La. R.S. 30:2025(E) of the Act.
VI
As required by law, the Department has submitted this Settlement Agreement to the
Louisiana Attorney General for approval or rejection. The Attorney General’s concurrence is
appended to this Settlement Agreement.
IX
The Respondent has caused a public notice advertisement to be placed in the official journal
of the parish governing authority in Winn Parish, Louisiana. The advertisement, in form and
wording approved by the Department, announced the availability of this Settlement Agreement for
public view and comment and the opportunity for a public hearing. Respondent has submitted an
original proof-of-publication affidavit and an original public notice to the Department and, as of the
date this Settlement Agreement is executed on behalf of the Department, more than forty-five (45)
days have elapsed since publication of the notice.
X

Payment is to be made within thirty (30) days from notice of the Secretary's signature. If
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payment is not received within that time, this Settlement Agreement is voidable at the option of the
Department. The Respondent shall provide its tax identification number when submitting payment.
Payments are to be made by check, payable to the Department of Environmental Quality, and mailed
or delivered to the attention of Accountant Administrator, Financial Services Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 4303, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70821-4303 or by
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) to the Department of Environmental Quality, in accordance with
instructions provided to Respondent by the Financial Services Division. Each payment shall be
accompanied by a completed Settlement Payment Form attached hereto.
XI
In consideration of the above, any claims for penalties are hereby compromised and settled in
accordance with the terms of this Settlement Agreement.
Xl
Each undersigned representative of the parties certifies that he or she is fully authorized to
execute this Settlement Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and to legally bind such

party to its terms and conditions.
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WEST FRASER, INC.

BY: //f/WrL%M"/
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7 (Printed)
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THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this Q — dayof
Sy L2025 atWieeheld U .

— Vot e ek
\__NDOTARY PUBLIC (ID # 203552}

OFFICIAL SEAL
JULIE SELLERS
NOTARY ID # 203552
STATE OF LOUISIANA
PARISH OF WINN

S Ftamped oF T ian]

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Courtney J. Burdette, Secretary

e

Jerrie %rr?’ Lax@ssistant S

Office of Environmental Compliance

THUS ];20 5 ND SIGNED 1n duphcate original before me this %i 16 day of

, at Baton Rouge, Loulslana

T Eatia NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # 5 1205 5
PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE
Commission Is for
(stamped or printed)

Approved%_h

Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant S
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EXHIBIT
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LDEQ-EDMS Document 11507858, Page 2 of 6

A ] cmrespondcnce dated September 27, 2017, the Respondent submitted the
ility's 2017 First Semiannual Monitoring Report. In correspondence dated
March .16, 2018, the Respondent submitted the facility’s 2017 Second
Semianinual Monitoring Report. The reports disclosed block daily opacities in
excess -of 10% for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source .
CON 0004, for the dates shown in Table B:

" TABLEB
Deviation Began Deviatlon Ended | Deviation hours | OP*%Y> 10%: | Gorrective Action
el 17X 168
1725 T I~ =7
2121 e 4
21356 2126 24
327 329 72
a2 an 24
4/4 a7 24 Added dry shavings
477 ar . 24
512 5/2 24
517 5/9 72
522 573 48
TSR6 556 74
5030 551 43
612 6/3 48
616 6/10 120 y y
63 | 6hd ITH a"‘a‘iet‘;"“ ing
~ 623 23 24 aler
6565 - T ??86 ;g Wet Fuel
Ty | 9ns 192
IRl . | &’ 336
T80 - | _8AS 144
BT R 8/19 73
821 - 825 120
829 913 184
o716 9/16 2% None
o8 9/ig 24
920 | 970 24
9[22 .- 923 24
924 930, 168
10/5 10714 340
1017 10721 120
1027 10728 48
/4 | 175 48
118 1T 18 364




‘LDEQ-ED

7858, Page 3 of &

T s> 9%

Cause

' .Chrrecﬁve Action

None
7500{3)(2), whlch Ianguage has beén adopted as & Lovisiana
LAC 33:11. SIZZ.A, LAC 33:1L501.C. 4 La. RS. 30:2057(AX(1)
efx,tiﬁcrauonal requu'cments required Boiler No. 4 to operate
cagaczty, !ughcr than normal operatmg rates, and that the facz[xty
than faczhty typically consumed intemally, In comrespondence dated
February. 1, 2018; and June 29; 2018, the Respondent listed steps that would
betakentoreduaaﬁnmeopamtyexewdauces. :
B, In correspondence dated Scptember 2?" 2017, the ReSpondent submitted the
facthty s 2017 First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed
T -opacities in ‘excess ‘of 20% for six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive
nunats for the Al Wood-Fired Boilcrs CAP Emission Source GRP 0004, for.
the perio shawanableC L
| ot f‘ P TABLEC .
| DevmhonBegan Devmnon Ended I)evxatmn hours 093%?;:0%’ Corre_t":givg Action
71118 | .'---1118 ' 1 5
119 1/19 , ..1"--.0
- 1{20 - 120 1.2,22,6.1, 1.1
1200 121 - 13.9
SO 12 1222 1.0
C 315 315 1.1 .
30T 30T 12 Wet Fuel Added dry shavings |
329 3/29 2.1 i
44 . 4/4 18,19
ST 517 1.4
S 5/8 L6




mmc— |

O;nmy > 20%

“ d Devu!mn hours Ca “ Corrective Action
i ause :

15
- 1.0

1.0
L0
1.0

33

/Added dry shavings

: !15{:' ll 1} Wet Fuel

10,13 - 1 Manage cooling
1.0 water

2.8 '

2.1

Coany 6 ""ut\fﬁ mmutes is a vxolatzon of SR 94 of T’tie V. Permit

 No.: J0006-VS, SR 93 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V6,

_LAC 33001 1101.B, LAC 33: JIL501.C4, La. RS. 30:2057(A)1) and

. -1302057(13)(2) “The monitoring report further explamed that the loss of Boiler

" Noo b requmd Boiler No. 4 1o operate at maximum capacity and that the

* facility had to pm'chase outside. waste: wood fuel which contained higher

- moisture than the facility typically consumed mtemal%y In correspondcnce

- dated June'29, 2018; the Respondent hsted steps to be taken going: forward to
redm:e ﬁxturcopaclty excwdances e

. C En wmsmndem_dated July 12, 2018 the Respondent submxttcd the
© . facility’s 2017 Annual - Criteria’ Fol!utant Emission Inventory and Toxic
" ‘Emissions D: _vg:ntory The failure to submit the criteria poliutant

- 15 in by the extended due date of May 18, 2018 is a violation -

af LAC 33 HI919.F 1.d, LAC 33:111.501.C.4 and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

- The failure to submit the toxic emissions inventory data by the extended -
due date is a'violation of LAC 33:IL5107.A, LAC 33:[1.501.C.4 and

N La.R,S 30'2057(A)(2) -

, Pursuant to La. R..S 30 2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment s being pons:dered for the violations described herein. Written comments may be filed

. regarding the violations-and the contemp!ated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that thcy be submmed thhm ten (I 0) days of receipt of this notice.

Pnor to the issuance - of any additional appmpnate enforcement action, you may request a
meeting with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violations. If you
would like to have such a mesting, please contact Mark E. Brown within ten (10) days of receipt of this

NOTICE OF POTENTIAL FENALTY
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-18-00536
Page 5

The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the -
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance in order to determine whether a penalty will be
assessed and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross
revenue statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited
violations to the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you
utilized to arrive at the sum. If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully
justify this statement. If the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross
revenues statement within ten (10) days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the
Respondent has the ability to pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties and
the right to seek compliance with its rules and regulations in any manner allowed by law, and nothing
-herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties and compliance.

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:[.Subpart].Chapter 7. To expedite
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, the Respondent may offer a settlement amount
to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violations described herein. The Respondent may offer a
settlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer
amount may-be entered on the attached “NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO
SETTLE” form. The Respondent must include a justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of
the offer amount with the form. The Department will review the settlement offer and notify the
Respondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted.

To reduce document handling, please refer to the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency
Interest Number on the front of this document on all correspondence in response to this action.

Lourdes [turralde
Assistant Secretary ,
Office of Environmental Compliance

LI/MEB/meb
Alt ID No. 3240-00006

¢: West Fraser, Inc.
P O Drawer 1
Joyce, LA 71440




Mark E. Brown

| (225) 219-3782

4Jo?ce53wmi!1

6841 Louislana Highway 34

Joyce, LA71440

Wirin_ .

; : ent':negouatlons with the Department with the understanding that the
he risre: :oassess civit pemlties hased on LAC 331.subpart1 Chapter7.

qﬂerrmubfemquky mmmmmmmmwmmmmt
_ cgnpfete.wkocerﬂfyﬂwudommmwkwfmswpemf&esm&mﬁepamnentforthisfndmy

‘Respondent’s Title

Res;;dndent’s Pﬁnted Name

Rmndmﬁ Physlul Address

nespmdem‘s Phone 8

Date

MAL COMPLETED DOCUMENTTO THE ADDRESS BELOW:

_Louisiana Deparumt af £nvlmmnentai Quality
Office of Environmental Complianoe-
Enforcementblvisicn

P.0. Bpxﬁﬂ ‘
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Criuck CARR BrowN, Pu.D.

Joun BeL EDWARDS
SECRETARY

GOVERNOR

State of Louisiana

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

December 27, 2019

EXHIBIT
b
CERTIFIED MAIL {7018 2250 0000 5826 1593) 5 2
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
WEST FRASER, INC,
c/o C T Corporation System
Agent for Service of Process

5615 Corporate Blvd., Ste, 400B
Baton Rouge, LA 70808

RE: CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER
& NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO. AE-CN-19-01078
AGENCY INTEREST NO. 2866

Dear Sir/Madam:

Pursuant to the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act (La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq.), the attached
CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY is hereby
served on WEST FRASER, INC. (RESPONDENT) for the violation(s) described therein.

Compliance is expected within the maximum time period established by each part of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER. The violation(s) cited in the CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE
ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY could result in the issuance of a civil penalty or

other appropriate legal actions.
Any questions concerning this action should be directed to Mark E. Brown at (225) 219-3782 or
via email at mark brown(@la.gov.
Sincerely,
g/ -
A 8
Admini
Enfi ent Division
CIC/MEB/meb
Alt 1D No. 3240-00006
Attachment

Post Office Box 4312 » Baton Rouge, Lovisiana 708214312 ¢ Phone 225-219-3715 « Fax 225-219-3708

www.dea.louisiana.gov
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c: West Fraser, Inc.
Mr. Billy Bell, Manager
P. O. Drawer 1
Joyce, LA 71440
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STATE OF LOUISIANA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

IN THE MATTER OF .

*
WEST FRASER, INC. * ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO.
WINN PARISH *
ALT ID NO. 3240-00006 * AE-CN-19-01078

*

| *  AGENCY INTEREST NO.
PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISIANA  *
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, * 2866
La. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ. .
CONSOLIDATED

COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

The following CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY is issued to WEST FRASER, INC. (RESPONDENT) by the Louisiana Department of
Environmental Quality (the Department), under the authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental
Quality Act (the Act), La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq., and particularly by La. R.S. 30:2025(C), 30:2050.2 and
30:2050.3(B).

FINDINGS OF FACT
L

The Respondent owns and/or operates the JOYCE SAWMILL (the facility), a sawmill, located
at 6481 Louisiana Highway 34 in Joyce, Winn Parish, Louisiana. The facility operates or has operated
under the authority of the following Title V Air Permits shown in Table A:

TABLE A
Title V Permit No. Permit Issue Date Permit Expiration Date
3240-00006-V4 June 25, 2015 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V5 June 2, 2016 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V6 May 26, 2017 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V7 May 4, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V8 August §, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V9 October 4, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V10 October 2, 2019 June 25, 2020
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II.
On or about December 3, 2019, the Department conducted a file review to determine the
Respondent’s degree of compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable
permits. While the Department’s investigation is not yet complete, the following violations were noted

during the course of the file review:

A. In correspondence dated August 16, 2019, the Respondent submitted revised 2018
Semiannual Monitoring Reports and the 2019 1® Semiannual Monitoring Report.
The reports disclosed opacities in excess of 20% for more than one six-minute
period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004, for the periods shown in Table B:

Table B
Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
1/3/18 ) 1/3/18 0.6
1/4/18 1/4/18 0.4
1/5/18 1/5/18 1.7
1/6/18 1/6/18 0.8
1/7/18 1/7/18 0.3
1/9/18 1/9/18 0.9
1/10/18 1/10/18 0.8
1/11/18 1/11/18 1.0
1/12/18 1/12/18 0.4
1/15/18 1/15/18 0.3
212/18 2/12/18 0.2
2/13/18 2/13/18 0.2
2/14/18 2/14/18 0.2
2/15/18 2/15/18 0.2
2/16/18 2/16/18 0.4
2/19/18 2/20/18 0.2
2/20/18 2720/18 0.2
272118 2/21/18 0.6
2/21/18 22218 0.3
2722/18 2/22/18 3.2
2/23/18 2/23/18 0.8
2/26/18 2/26/18 37
212718 2/27/18 0.8
2/28/18 2/28/18 34
312118 3/2/18 1.5
3/3/18 3/3/18 14
3/5/18 3/5/18 1.5
3/5/18 3/6/18 0.8
3/6/18 3/6/18 0.8
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
37118 31718 1.0
318 3/8/18 1.6
3/9/18 3/5/18 0.7
3/10/18 3/10/18 0.2
3/11/18 3/11/18 0.4
3/12/18 ' 3/12/18 2.1
3/13/18 3/13/18 0.4
3/15/18 3/15/18 0.4
3/17/18 31718 1.6
3/20/18 3/20/18 0.2
312318 3/23/18 0.2
3/27/18 327118 04
3/28/18 3/28/18 12
3/29/18 3/29/18 3.4
3/30/18 3730/18 0.2
4/1/18. 4/1/18 04
473/18: 4/3/18 0.2
4/418 4/4/18 0.6
4/6/18. 4/6/18 1.9
4/7/18 471118 2.7
4/9/18 4/9/18 0.4
41018 4/10/18 0.5
4/13/18 4/13/18 0.2
4/14/18 4/14/18 0.4
4/16/18 4/16/18 0.2
41718 4/17118 1.8
4/19/18 4/19/18 1.8
4/20/18 4720/18 2.0
421/18 421718 0.6
422/18 4/22/18 2.1
4726/18 4/26/18 0.4
4/21/18 427718 0.2
3218 502718 0.3
5/3/i8 53/18 0.3
5/418 5/4/18 0.2
S/10/18 5/10/18 0.2
5/12/18 5/12/18 0.2
5/14/18 5/14/18 0.5
5/16/18 5/16/18 0.4
5/17/18 /18 0.2
S/18/18 5/18/18 0.5
5/20/18 5/20/18 0.2
321118 5/21/18 0.5
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Deviation Bepan Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
5/26/18 5/26/18 0.4
S5R2718 527/18 0.2
5/31/18 5/31/18 0.2
6/3/18 6/4/18 0.5
6/4/18 6/4/18 2.7
6/6/18 6/6/18 0.3
6/7/18 6/7/18 0.6
6/9/18 6/9/18 0.2
6/13/18 6/13/18 0.2
6/14/18 6/14/18 0.3

_6/16/18 6/16/18 0.6
6/17/18 ~ 6/17118 0.3
6/20/18 6/20/18 0.2
6/21/18 6/21/18 0.3
6/22/18 6/22/18 0.8
6/24/18 6/24/18 1.6
6/27/18 6/27/18 0.2
6/28/18 6/28/18 1.0
6/30/18 6/30/18 0.3
7/1/18 7/1/18 0.6
7/3/18 7/3/18 0.7
7/3/18 7/4/18 0.5
7/4/18 7/4/18 0.2
7/6/18 7/6/18 1.5
7/9/18 7/9/18 1.0
7/10/18 7/10/18 1.8
/11718 7/11/18 2.7
7/12/18 71218 0.4
7713418 7/13/18 0.6
7/14/18 7/14/18 0.3
7/15/18 7/15/18 1.8
7/16/18 7/16/18 04
717118 7/17/18 0.7
7/18/18 7/18/18 0.5
7/19/18 7/19/18 1.3
721/18 721718 0.3
7/21/18 7/22/18 0.3
7122118 7/22/18 0.2
7/23/18 7/23/18 3.9
772118 7/27/18 0.6
7/28/18 7/28/18 0.5
7/29/18 7129/18 0.3
7/30/18 7/30/18 0.3
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)

731718 731/18 2.1

8/1/18 8/1/18 1.0

8/2/18 8/2/18 1.1
8/3/18 8/3/18 0.3

8/4/18 _ 8/4/18 0.2

8/6/18 8/6/18 1.1
8/7/18 8/7/18 1.0
8/8/18 8/8/18 0.8
8/11/18 8/11/18 0.2
8/12/18 8/12/18 4.5
8/12/18 8/13/18 1.3
8/14/18 8/14/18 0.7
8/15/18 8/15/18 0.5
8/16/18 8/16/18 0.2
8/18/18 8/18/18 0.3
8/19/18 8/19/18 1.1
8/20/18 8/20/18 1.3
8/21/18 821718 0.2
8/22/18 8/22/18 0.2
8/23/18 8/23/18 0.4
8724/18 8/24/18 0.2
8/26/18 8/26/18 1.0
97218 9/2/18 0.2
9/3/18 9/3/18 3.1
9/3/18 9/4/18 6.9
9/4/18 5/4/18 1.0
9/5/18 9/5/18 1.2
9/6/18 9/6/18 0.2
9/7/18 9/7/18 0.6
9/11/18 9/11/18 1.9
9/11/18 G/12/18 0.2
9/12/18 9/12/18 2.7
9/13/18 9/13/18 34
0/16/18 9/16/18 1.5
9/17/18 9/17/18 0.9
0/18/18 9/18/18 24
9/19/18 9/19/18 1.5
9/20/18 9/20/18 4.0
9/21/18 9121/18 54
9/22/18 9/22/18 3.1
9/23/18 9/23/18 53
9/724/18 9/24/18 20
9/25/18 9/25/18 4.6
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
9/25/18 9/26/18 0.5
9726718 0/26/18 3.2
9/26/18 9/27/18 3.6
9/27/18 9/27/18 2.2
9/28/18 9/28/18 3.3
9/29/18 ' 9/29/18 3.7
9/30/18 9/30/18 3.0
9/30/18 - 10/1/18 14
10/1/18 10/1/18 5.8
10/1/18 B 10/2/18 1.5
10/2/18 10/2/18 4.7
10/3/18 10/3/18 2.4
10/4/18 10/4/18 11.1
10/5/18 10/5/18 6.4
10/6/18 10/6/18 3.7
10/6/18 10/7/18 03

1047118 _JO/H18 0.9
10/8/18 10/8/18 4.6
10/9/18 10/9/18 10.7
10/9/18 10/10/18 i3
10/10/18 10/10/18 6.4
10/10/18 10/11/18 0.6
10/11/18 10/11/18 3.1
10/12/18 10/12/18 0.7
10/13/18 10/13/18 2.8
10/14/18 10/14/18 3.4
10/15/18 10/15/18 5.7
10/16/18 10/16/18 7.1
10/16/18 10/17/18 1.0
10/17/18 10/17/18 3.9
10/18/18 10/18/18 4.7
10/19/18 10/19/18 2.7
10/20/18 10/20/18 0.7
10/20/18 10/21/18 5.6
10/21/18 10/21/18 32
10/21/18 10/22/18 5.0
10/22/18 10/22/18 7.6
10/22/18 10/23/18 1.5
10/23/18 10/23/18 4.0
10/24/18 10/24/18 1.7
10/24/18 10/25/18 0.3
10/25/18 10/25/18 4.2
10/25/18 10/26/18 2.5
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
10/26/18 10/26/18 3.0
10/26/18 10/27/18 1.4
1072718 10/27/18 _ 4]
10/28/18 10/28/18 ' 2.5
10/29/18 10/29/18 8.5
10/29/18 10/30/18 3.0
10/30/18 10/30/18 5.4

1030718 ﬁ 10/31/18 4.7
10/31718 10/31/18 16.9
10/31/18 11/1/18 5.8
11/1/18 11/1/18 7.6
11/1/18. 11/2/18 50
1172/18 11/2/18 11.9
11/2/18 11/3/18 4.5
11/3/18 11/3/18 13.1
11/4/18- 11/4/18 10.7
11/4/18 11/5/18 3.0
11/5/18 11/5/18 16.2
11/5/18 11/6/18 3.0
11/6/18 11/6/18 10.0
11/6/18 11/7/18 4.0
11/7/18 11/7/18 7.9
11/7/18 11/8/18 16.0
11/8/18 11/8/18. 12.5
11/9/18 11/9/18 11.3
11/9/18 11/10/18 5.0
11/10/18 11710718 8.9
11/10/18 11/11/18 2.0
11/11/18 11/11/18 10.9
11/11/18 11/12/18 4.0
11/12/18 11/12/18 4,0
11/12/18 11/13/18 1.0
11/13/18 11/13/18 11.9
11/13/18 11/14/18 2.2
11/14/18 11/14/18 10.0
11/14/18 11/15/18 6.0
11/15/18 11/15/18 4.0
11/15/18 11/16/18 16.0
11/16/18 11/16/18 13.3
11/16/18 11/17/18 3.0
11/17/18 11/17/18 15.6
11/18/18 11/18/18 il9
11/18/18 : 11719/18 3.0
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
11/19/18 11/19/18 11.9
11/19/18 11/20/18 3.0
11720/18 11/20/18 12.8
11/20/18 11/21/18 11.6
11/21/18 11/21/18 11.6
112118 11/22/18 1.6
11/22/18 11/22/18 12.4
12/9/18 12/9/18 0.4
12/10/18 12/10/18 1.4
12/11/18 ' 12/11/18 3.0
12/12/18 12/12/18 0.2
12/13/18 12/13/18 0.2
12/14/18 12/14/18 0.2
12/17/18 12/17/18 2.2
12/18/18 12/18/18 1.2
12/19/18 12/19/18 1.1
12/20/18 12/20/18 0.3
12/21/18 _ 12/21/18 0.6
12/25/18 _ 12/25/18 2.3
12/26/18 12/26/18 : 3.6
12/27/18 12/27/18 1.9
12/28/18 12/28/18 0.9
1/3/19 1/3/19 0.9
1/7/19 1/7/19 3.1
1/9/19 1/9/19 1.1
1/12/19 1/12/19 0.2
1/13/19 1/13/19 1.4
1/23/19 1/23/19 5.1
1/24/19 1/24/19 0.3
1/25/19 1/25/19 0.4
1/28/19 1/28/19 0.2
1/29/19 1/29/19 0.2
1/30/19 1/30/19 0.3
2/4/19 2/4/19 0.6
2/18/19 2/18/19 0.2
2/20/19 2/21/19 0.6
2/21/19 2/21/19 0.5
2/22/19 2/22/19 0.6
2/26/19 2/26/19 0.3
3/5/19 3/5/19 0.3
3/9/19 3/9/19 0.2
3/20/19 3/20/19 0.2
3/21/19 3/21/19 0.3
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
3/24/19 3/24/19 0.5
3/28/19 3728119 0.3
3/29/19 3/29/19 0.2
3/31719 3/31/19 0.5

4/8/19 4/8/19 1.7
4/13/19 4/13/19 0.2
4/15/19 4/15/19 0.2
4/17/19 4/17119 1.0
4/19/19 4/19/19 0.6
4/22/19 4/22/19 0.5

5/5/19 5/5/19 1.2
5/1019 5/10/19 2.6
'5/10/19 5/11/19 1.3
5/1219 512419 0.8
5/18/19 5/18/19 1.6
5/28/1% 5/28/19 0.2

6/2/19 6/2/19 0.3

6/5/19 6/5/19 0.4

Each failure to maintain opacity below 20% for not more than one (1) six-minute
periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a viclation of Specific Requirement (SR)
93 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V6, SR 89 of Title V' Permit
No. 3240-00006-V7, SR 88 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V8, SR 88 of Title
V Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and 30:2057(A)(2).

. In correspondence dated August 16, 2019, the Respondent submitted revised 2018
Semiannual Monitoring Reports and the 2019 1** Semiannual Monitoring Report.
The reports disclosed daily block opacities averages in excess of 10% for the
Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004, for the periods shown

in Table C:
Table C
Deviation Began Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
2/22/18 2/23/18 24
2/26/18 3/1/18 72
3/2/18 3/6/18 66
3/7118 3/8/18 18
3/12/18 3/13/18 24
3/17/18 3/18/18 24
3/29/18 3/30/18 24
4/6/18 4/8/18 48
4/15/18 4/21/18 48
4/22/18 4/23/18 24
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Deyiation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
AT 5/22/18 24
6/4/18 6/5/18 24
6/24/18 6/25/18 24
7/1/18 71218 13
7/10/18 7/16/18 144
7/17/18 7120/18 72
7/21/18 7/24/18 72
/31718 8/9/18 212
8/19/18 8/20/18 24
9/7/18 9/8/18 24
9/16/18 11/24/18 1,510
12/27/18 12/28/18 24
1/23/19 1/24/19 24
411719 4/18/19 12.0

Each failure to maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to 10% is
a violation of Specific Requirement (SR) 1 of Title V Permit Nos.
3240-00006-V6, 3240-00006-V7, 3240-00006-V8, 3240-00006-V9, 40 CFR
63.7500(a)(2), ‘which language has been adopted as a lLouisiana regulation in
LAC 33:1115122.A, LAC 33:1IL501.C.4, La. RS. 30:2057(A)1) and
30:2057(A)(2).

M.
In corr‘e_spondence dated April 15, and October 14, 2019, the Respondent submitted to the
Department a Compliance Plan to address the opacity violations at the facility. In correspondence dated
December 13, 2019, the Respondent stated Boiler #1 will not startup. Based on this information, the

milestones contained in the Compliance Plan directly related to Boiler #1 are no longer necessary,

COMPLIANCE ORDER

Based on the foregoing, the Respondent is hereby ordered:
L

To take, immediately upon receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, any and all steps necessary

to meet and maintain compliance with the Air Quality Regulations and applicable permits.
1.

The Department has reviewed the Compliance Plan submitted by the Respondent in
correspondence dated April 15 and October 14, 2019, and hereby orders the Respondent to implement the

following milestones to achieve compliance:

10
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TABLE D

MILESTONE DUE DATE

Submit a written report to the Department on the evaluation and 17312020
recommendations related fo nnprovements of the boilers and kilns

Implement, install and/or 1 ‘equipment and/or control systems based on 6/302021
recommendations

The Respondent shall notify the Department in writing of any changes to the approved compliance
schedule within seven (7) days of notice/discovery of failure to meet the due dates.
1.

To submit to the Enforcement Division quarterly progress reports until the completion of the
milestones listed in Paragraph I of the Order Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. The quarterly
progress reports shall include the following information: 1) findings of additional work to be completed;
2) results of the wark completed to date, and, 3) any additional medifications that have yet to be identified.
Quarterly progress reports shall be submitted to the Department on the last day of the month preceding
each quarter.

Iv.

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report that includes a detailed description of the circumstances
surrounding the cited violations and actions taken or to be taken to achieve compliance with the Order
Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This report and all other reports or information required to be
submitted to the Enforcement Division by this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall be submitted to:

Office of Environmentat Compliance

Post Office Box 4312

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312

Attn: Mark E. Brown

Re: Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078
Agency Interest No. 2866

THE RESPONDENT SHALL FURTHER BE ON NOTICE THAT:
L

The Respondent has a right to an adjudicatory hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of
law arising from this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This right may be exercised by filing a written request
with the Secretary no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER.

11
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I1.

The request for an adjudicatory hearing shall specify ﬂle provisions of the COMPLIANCE
ORDER on which the hearing is requested and shall briefly describe the basis for the request.
This request should reference the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency Interest Number, which are
located in the upper right-hand corner of the first page of this document and should be directed to the
following:

Department of Environmental Quality

Office of the Secretary

Post Office Box 4302

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4302

Attn: Hearings Clerk, Legal Division

Re:  Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078
Agency Interest No. 2866

0.

Upon the Respondent’s timely filing a request for a hearing, a hearing on the disputed issue of
material fact or of law regarding this COMPLIANCE ORDER may be scheduled by the Secretary of the
Department. The hearing shall be governed by the Act, the Administrative Procedure Act (La. R.S.
49:950, et seq.), and the Division of Administrative Law (DAL) Procedural Rules. The Department may
amend or supplement this COMPLIANCE ORDER prior to the hearing, after providing sufficient notice
and an opportunity for the preparation of a defense for the hearing.

Iv.

This COMPLIANCE ORDER shall become a final enforcement action unless the request for
hearing is timely filed. Failure to timely request a hearing constitutes a waiver of the Respondent's right
to a hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of law under Section 2050.4 of the Act for the
viclation(s) described herein.

V.

The Respondent's failure to request a hearing or to file an appeal or the Respondent's withdrawal
of a request for hearing on this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall not preclude the Respondent from
contesting the findings of facts in any subsequent penalty action addressing the same violation(s), although
the Respondent is estopped from objecting to this COMPLIANCE ORDER becoming a permanent part
of its compliance history.

12
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VL
Civil penalties of not more than twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars (327,500) for each
day of violation for the violation(s) described herein may be assessed. For violations which occurred on
August 15, 2004, or after, civil penalties of not more than thirty-two thousand five hundred dollars
{$32,500) may be assessed for each day of violation. The Respondent's failure or refusal to comply with
this COMPLIANCE ORDER and the provisions herein will subject the Respondent to possible
enforcement procedures under La. R.S. 30:2025, which could result in the assessment of a civil penalty in
an amount of not more than fifty thousand dollars {$50,000) for each day of continued violation or
noncompliance.
VIL
For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties in any
manner allowed by law, and nothing herein shall be construed to preciude the right to seek such penalties.

NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
L
Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.
I
Prior to the issuance of additional appropriate enforcement action(s), you may request a meeting
with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). If you would
like to have such a meeting, please contact Mark E. Brown at (225) 219-3782 within ten (10) days of
receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.
HI.
The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
~ Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance to determine whether a penalty will be assessed
and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross revenue
statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited violation(s) to
the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized to arrive at the

13
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sum. If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify that statement. if
the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross revenues statement within
ten (10) days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent has the ability to
pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

.

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpart].Chapter7. To expedite
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY portion, the Respondent may offer a settlement
amount to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may
offer a settlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision to proceed with a settiement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement
offer amount may be entered on the attached “CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER AND
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO CLOSE” form.
The Respondent must include a justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of the offer amount
with the form. The Department will review the settlement offer and notify the Respondent as to whether

the offer is or is not accepted.
V.

This CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
is effective upon receipt. E

Baton Rouge, Louisiana, this & 7: day of &uv\,—w , 2019,

Lourdes lturralde
Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

14
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Copies of a request for a hearing and/or related correspondence should be sent to:

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

P.O. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 3240-00024

Attention: Mark E. Brown

15
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LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

ENFORCEMENT DIVISION CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & ! B
POST OFFICE BOX:4312 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY DEQ
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70821-4312 REQUEST TO CLOSE LOUISIARA
Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078 Contact Name Mark E. Brown
Agency Interest {Al) No. 2866 Contact Phone No. {225) 219-3782
Alternate ID No.. 3240-00006
Responderit: West Frasar, Inc. Facility Name: Jjoyce Sawmill
¢/o C T Corporation System )
_ggetit for Service of Process Physical Location: 6481 Louisiana Highway 34
5615 Corporate Blvd,, Ste. 4008 City, State, Zip: Joyce, LA
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 Parish; Winn
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE Date Completed Copy Attached?

COMPLIANCE ORDER.

A written report was submitted in accordance with Paragraph t1 of the “Order” portion of the

All necessary documents will be submitted to the Department in accordance with Paragraph
1V of the “Order” ponion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER.

Altitems In the *Findings of Fact” portion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER were addressed and
the facility is being operated to meet and maintain the requirements of the “Order” portion

of the COMPLIANCE QRDER. Final compliance was achieved as of:

SETTLEMENT OFFER {OPTIONAL}

{check the applicable option}

The Respondent is not Interested In entering into settiement negotiations with the Department with the understanding that the
Department has the right 1o assess civil penalties based on LAC 33:.Subpart1.Chapter7.

In order to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violations in COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
AE-CN-19-01078, the Respondent [s interested [n entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to
set up a meeting to discuss settlement procedures,

In order to resolve any ciaim for civil penalties for the violations in COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
AE-CN-19-01078, the Respondent is Interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and offers to pay

$ ‘which shall include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance.
» Monetary component = _ S
» Beneficial Environmental Project {BEPjcomponent (optionalj= 1

e DO NOT SUBMIT PAYMENT OF THE OFFER WITH THIS FORM- the Department will review the settlement offer and notify the
Respandent as to whether the offer Is or Is not accepted.

The Respondent has reviewed the viélations noted in COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY AE-
CN-19-01078, and has attached a justification of its offer and a description of any BEPs if included in seftlement offer.

16
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CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
1 certify, undler provisions in Louisfana ond United States low that provide criminal penalties for false statements, that based on information
ond belief formed ofter reasonoble inquiry, the stotements and information attached and the complionce statement above, ore true,
occurate, and complete. | also certify thot I do nat owe outstanding fees or penaities to the Department for this facility or any other facility
1 own or operate. | further certify that | am either the Respondent or on suthorized representative of the Respondent.

Respondent’s Signature Respondent’s Printed Name Respondent’s Title

Respondent’s Physical Address Respondent’s Phone # Date
MAIL COMPLETED DOCUMENT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW:

Loulsiana Department of Environmefital Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

P.O.Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Attn: Mark E. Brown

17
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Jerp LANDRY AURELIA S. GIACOMETTO

State of Lonigiana

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

NOV 1 2 204

EXHIBIT

CERTIFIED MAIL (9589 0710 5270 2139 4598 00)
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

WEST FRASER, INC,
coCT Corporation System
Agent for Service of Process
3867 Plaza Tower Dr.

Baton Rouge, LA 70816

RE: NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO. AE-PP-24-00312
AGENCY INTEREST NO. 2866

Dear Sir/Madam:

On or about May 1, 2024 and October 9, 2024, the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
{the Department) conducted an inspection and subsequent file review of JOYCE SAWMILL; a lumber
manufacturing facility, owned and/or operated by WEST FRASER, INC. (RESPONDENT), to
determine the degree of compliance with the Louisiana Environmental QuahtyAct(meAct)andtheA.r
Quality. Regulations. The facility is located at 6481 Louisiana Highway 34 in Joyce, Winn Parish,
Louisiana. The facility operates or has operated under the authority of the following Title V Air Permits
and Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permit shown in Table A:

3240-00006-V12 March 6, 2023 August 31, 2026

3240-00006-V13 Suly 12, 2024 August 31, 2026
PSD-LA-701{M-3) March 6, 2023 N/A

While the investigation by the Department is not yet complete, the following violations were noted
during the course of the inspection and file review:

A. The Respondent exceeded twenty percent opacity for more than one (1) six-
‘minute period in any sixty (60) consecutive minutes. Specifically, at the time of
the inspection, the Department’s inspector reviewed the six-minute opacity

Post Office Box 4312 « Bazon Rouge, Louisiana 708214312 « Phone 225-219-3710 » Fax 225-219-3330
' www.deq.louisiana.gov
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West F m,_ ,Inc'f
AE-PP-24.00312
Page 2

tecords and alarms records for February through April 2024, shown below in

TableB.

. ‘2"3’,‘,‘;4 AR

48024 8w up. Blew them all down, got | '"*PEARE 1 why
2. | 12:00-1:00 AM 51084 | 4/Fuel fooder not fecding | them foeding again, Caused by | o0 o
3 (0.3 bours) Py a fuel mmb:;ahshmvym ‘September 2024 outage.
4 55.800
5 51.366
S ansnme 1% B ool dowre tnspecting end repsiring
7. | 2:42324 AM 4962 4/ Fuel foeder not foeding | them feeding again. Caused by | 4= 0L
" (0.733 hours) 51665 a fusel mixture b;;at is heavy in September 2024 cutage.
9 50.018
10. 43937
L1 ansnos 2150 fp‘."’é’;fifﬁ;“:ﬁ :om tnspecting and repelrng
12.] 724-8:18AM 63331 4/ Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by hoppers during
1 @31 hotirs) o a fuel mtm;;;ﬂt Sheavy I | eptermber 2024 cutage.
i anin0s 60362 | ﬁpsﬁi:;::ﬁ ;om “‘W&‘&Tg
12:00-12:18 AM 4/ Fuel focder not feeding | them feeding again. Cawsed by | )= P00
15. [ (0.317 howrs) 44.729 aﬁnlmmeba;? is heavy in September 2024 vutage.
16. 27917
17. 43.030
18, 56.034
19. 55.005
20.{ 402024 51414 ' u‘l‘f"é’{i’i il ;om Inspectiog sad reparing
| S [y | et | Canly | T
bark. September 2024 outage.
2. 45.444
23, 4611
24. 49.268
2. 45.500
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AE-PP-24-00312

Page 3

26. , 535 oy Inspecting and repairing
41202024 —1 up.Blew them all down, got focl feoders and
27.| 3:00-3:18 AM 153223 | 4/Fael feeder pot feeding | them feeding again. Caitsed by hoppers during
0.317 Bours i fue] mixture that is heavy i s L
) il ) e | September 2024 ontage.
. _ 1 R " Hoppers2, 3, and 4 stopped e
2.  azonms | 53513 | up. Blew them all down, got | “Pe0 ‘-‘“dl e
4:12:5: 12 AM - e 4/ Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Cansed by during
(0317howrs) | a fuel mixture that is heavy in hop
30. | __59_;15 bt September 2024 outage.
31 27574
32, 39.654
33. - 57906
34. 26859
35, 237" .
36. 36657 Hoooes2. 3. and 4
DPP“S t Rk ] Smpped : Sy
3. 4mono2s 40341 up. Blew them all dowm, got | '"*PECE ad eparing
7:12-8:34 AM 4/ Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by hoppers during
38. (1.8 hours) 36.754 aﬁmlmnmmlsm B | Sentember 2024 o Itage.
39, 35.239
40. 27.627
a1. 42853
42, 43,788
43, 30,728
44, 28.080
45. A2G2024 71.054 . . Normal corrective
12:12-1224 BM 1/ Cleat chain mechanical | Gyanges bels on cleat chain. | maintenance, chazging
46, {0317 bours) 20545 belts.
- . Short personnel on 4/22/2024
4.1 amnms 55052 | 15/Kilwissues (kilnsdown | © PR S | Kill paused due to
12:00-12:12 PM - - for maintenance Som sh mac;:)d::rof full production at kilns so one being short oa
48.| (O217hours) | 3224 kiln, load change, erc) | "B Paused smporertly uad persomel
s a . Short personnel on 4/22/2024
9.0 amnme 66223 | 15/ Kilnlssues (alns down |~ vrag umable to maintain |  Kiln pused due to
1:48-2:00 PM - . jom shutdown of full production at kilns so one being short 02
50. (0.217 hours) 5“1‘915 f Ephih" load change, ¢ic.) was % tcmpforari!y until personnel.
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51

‘West Fraser, Inc.

AE-PP-24-00312
Page 4

52, 61.065
53, ) _.5_5;549 Process change, boiler
54 42572024 56616 5 / Fuel issus: improperly Bailer pile had too much operatorsmsihle

' 9:12-10:06 PM e mixed, high moisture sawdust. Had to adjust boiler for tracking fuel
55. ;:0 85 m) $2.085 content, lack of adequate | settings due to fluctuations in mixture, moisture

fuel substitute fuel mixture. content, and ad ust
56. 45.105 accordingly.
57. 36362
58. 28.090
' n024 1 15/ Kiln issues (kilns down Lost power to kilns and

59 12:‘::3 100 AM 47.133 for maintenance and/or communication to kilns from N/A
60 (0' 733 Imurs) 45278 repair; random shutdown of | camputer sereen caused by bad '

- ’ 527 kiln, load change, etc.) weather event.

Each failure to control the emission of smoke generated by the buming of fuel
or combustion of waste material in a combustion unit s¢ that the shade or
appearance of the emission is niot darker than twenty (20) percent average
opacity for not more than on¢ (I) six-minute periog#”in any sixty (60)
consecuhye minutes is a violation.of Specific Requirement 5 of Title V Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12, LAC 33:1L.1101.B, LAC 33:[11.501.C4, La. R.S.
30: 2057(A)(l) and La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2). Addmona]ly, the failure to use

and/or diligently maintain in proper working order, air pollution control
facilities, Mma any emissions are being made which can be controlled by
the facilities is a violation of LAC 33:111.905.A, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
RS. 30.2057(A)(2)

. In the 2023 Title V Second Semiannual Monitoring Report, dated March 21,
2024, the Respondcni disclosed the following events when the opacity was in
excess of twenty (20) percent for more than one six-minute period in any sixty
(60) consecutive minutes for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), CON0004,
showninTableC:

T
1:36 AM - 2:36 AM for September boiler outage.
22023 Large piece of fuel caused feeder to
2, : 03 Fuel feeder not feeding. stop feeding and back up, cleansd
6:42 AM - 7:00 AM .
out large fuel piece.
7/10/2023 ; . Feeder #4 modifications are planned
3 6:06 PM — 6:18 PM 02 | Fuel foeder not feeding. for September boiler outage.
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-24-00312
Page S

Fesder #4 modifications are planned

B 1’!1 i 2 . .. e L S .,\- DLy :
4:06 AM ~ 4:48 AM 03 Fuel feeder not feeding, for September boiler outage,
7202023 ‘ . Lo Proximity switch was repositioned
| soapM-sa2PM 03 Cleat chain malfimction/repai. for better respouse.
CTnes . Fuel pile bridged in fuel house, had
8 | 124AM_136AM 02 _ Low fuel condition. CAT opersior mix and unbridge “uel.
7/30/2023 . Feeder #4 modifications are planned
| 236 AM-2:48 AM 0. Fuel foeder not fecding. for September boiler outage.
27302023 Took link out of drive chain. Plaa to
B. | 6:06 AM—624 AM 02 Cleat chain malfunction/repair. | replace drive chain and sprocket in
: September outage.
3212023 : ¥4 Feeder worked on daring
2 5:36 PM — 5:48 PMi 02 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
10 82112023 03 Electrical problems orpower | Loss of electrical power to the kilns
1 5:54PM-5:12PM outage. from the Utility feed.
9/1/2623 . #4 Feeder worked on during
L1 648 AM_7:06 AM 03 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
9/1/2023 ‘ . #4 Feeder worked on during
12.1 giag AM - 10:06 AM 12 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
912023 - . #4 Feeder worked on during
B.1  3:12PM-4:06PM 06 Fucl féeder nat feoding. September Outage.
14 ' 9212023 05 E.S.P, mechanical High O2 trip of ESP. Adjusted air
‘1 7:30 AM ~8:00 AM ) malfunction/repair balance to bring back in.
[T o #4 Feoder worked on during
-1 1206 PM-12:18PM 02 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage:
9212023 . < #4 Feeder worked on during
16. 2:54 PM - 3:48 PM 0.4 Fuel feeder not feeding, September Qutnge.
17 ' 9/32023 03 E.S.P, safety shutdown to Adjusted fuel feed to help bring 02
) 11:12 AM ~11:30 i prevent damage, down.
Kiln issues (kilns down for Kiln 6 down due to low greer.
18 9732023 04 maintenacce and/or repair, mventory, Kiln 4 finished dropping
) 4:06 PM -4:30 PM ) random shutdown of kiln, Joad | the load on the boiler. Unloaded and
change, etc.) reloaded Batch K4.
1412023 Fuel issue: improperly mixed, . . Foxi
191 54 AM 218 AM 03 high moistue content,lack of | "¢ mbfc:;:rfﬁ:gfsm
20 9/512023 o1 E.S.P. safety shutdown to Low voltage trip ESP feld 1.
1 T24PM 806 PM - prevent damage. Resturted field 1.
BT Fan reversal on kilns caused higk 02
/872023 E.S.P. safety shutdown to ; :
21. 2:36 PM - 2:54 PM 03 preveat demage. trip on ESP. Adé;su;ted 02 restared
9/9/2023 : . #4 Feeder worked on during
Z | 936AM-10:18 AM 02 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
Fuel issue: serly mixed, . .
5 el Bay | 04| e | Lt At
i ) adequate fuel substitute. -
9/26/2023 .
10/9/2023 . Long box bridged adjusted floor
251 9:00 AM— 9:42 AM 0.3 Low fuel conditon. hain fimers.
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-24-00312

Page 6

iy - 10182003 o
%61 236 AM- 3:30 AM o Low fuel condition. chain timers.
- : , ; Classifier stopped up, cleaned out
. 1072572023 o Ash system mechanical LA
27, 2:00 AM = 2:30 AM 05 Munction/repair. the followx;:g moming, Thursday |
11472023 ; . Operator raked the piled fuel to burn
2l o AM- 630 AM 03 Fuel feeder not feeding, iy
. . " Low water condition in the boier.
N e 02 Cleat chiain mechanical Adjusted DA pressure to allow
: i malfunction/repair. condensate to retum to enter the DA.
30 171372023 02 Low fuel candition. Operstoc pushed up the fuel. -
) 606 PM - 6:18 PM i
Kihy issues (kilns down for
1182023 maintenance and/or repair, .
31 1202 AM - 12:42 AM 05 random shutdown of kiln, load Kiln maintenance.
change, etc.)
/1872023 Low water condition in the boiler.
32, 8:30 PM - 9:00 PM 0.5 Feed water pump issues. Adjusted DA pressure to allow
; ' condensate to return to enter the DA,
Kiln issues (kilns down for
13 1172812023 02 ‘maintenance and/or repair, Had t paose Kiln & to change fan
"I T06AM-T7:18 AM random shutdown of kiln, load ‘beits.
change, etc.)
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
_ long box bridging trying to kesp
12/9/2023 - enough fuel feed for 3 kilns. Will
31 1024 AM-11:00 AM 0.6 Low fuel candition. aue:ﬁ;t'tmmove center nunnes
from between the chains during the
_next boiler outage.
Running 3 kilns, having issies with
long box bridging trying to keep
12/12/2023 o enough fuel feed for 3 kilns, Wil
35. 2:12 AM - 3:06 AM 0.5 Low fuel condition. attexf;t to remove center runner
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
_ long box bridging trying to kesp
12/12/2023 . enough fuel feed for 3 kilns. Will
36| 624 AM-6:36 AM 02 Law fuct condition. attempt 10 remove center runner
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
_ ) Tong box bridging trying to keep
1 12/15/2023 02 {:g :’:}m mixet: | enough fuel feed for 3 kitas. Wil
) 1:36 AM - 1:48 AM adequate fuel subistitute attempt to remove center runner
) from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
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‘West Fraser; Inc.
AE-PP-24:00312
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"Running 3 kilns, baving issues with |

12/15/2023 Fuel issue: improperty mixed, "”’g""a‘é"fg‘iﬁ* mhf\%
38, 137 04 high moisture content, Iack of | CCush fuel feed i
5:30 AM - 6:30 AM quate fusl subst: attempt to remove center runner
Squate " from between the chains during the
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
12042023 mamrmﬁl
. o
391 142AM- 1:58 AM 02 Low fuel condition. ‘attempt to remove center vunner
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
s gt g e
40. 442 PM - 542 PM 07 Low fuel condition. attampt to remove center runner
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Kiln issues (kilns down for
1230/2023 ; maintenance and/or repair, " .
Mol 10:00 AM - 10:18 AM 03 random shutdown of kila, load Kiln maintenance.
change. etc.)

Each failure to control the emission of smoke generated by the bumning of fuel
or combustion of waste material in a combustion unit so that the shade or
appearance of the emission is not darker than twenty (20) percent average
opacity for not more than one (1) six-minute period¥ in any sixty (60)
consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement 5 of Title V Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12, LAC 33:11.1101.B, LAC 33:I1.501.C.4, La. R.S.
'30:2057(A)(1) and La. RS. 30:2057(AX2). Additionally, the failure to use
and/or diligently maintain in proper working order, air pollution control
facilities, whenever any emissions are being made which can be controlied by
the facilities is a violation of LAC 33:1I1.905.A, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

C. In the 2023 Boiler MACT Semiannual Compliance Report, dated January 31,
2024 and the 2023 Title V Second Semiannual Monitoring Report, dated March
21, 2024, the Respondent reported the failure to operate and maintain the
continuous monitoring system (CMS) for McBurney Boiler No. 4/EQT0005 in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan (SSMP), shown in Table D.
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Facﬂxtymamganentlsdevelopmgamrmp N

. Steam Lo adg?ﬁ’ procedure for boiler operators, and will provide
122232023 14.85 hours per Opacity/’ training on the startup procedsmes for new hires
L 7:00PM - 10:00 AM parameter / Monitar equiment and sem!annually Management is also considering
R Total = 44.55 hours malﬁ?;ch ggm ey | -TOving CEMDAS monitoring system closer to
faﬂmnor ofﬂg?;. other operating monitors. Installed new CEMS
system and software 8/17/2023,
P N Facility managerpent is developing a startup
Steam mﬁmﬁ procedure for boiler operators, and will provide
2123.94/2023 21.7 hours per Opacity / ’ training on the startup procedures for new hires
2. | 11:00 AM —-9:00 AM parameter / Monitor eqnipment | 22 Semaiannoally, Management is also considering
e A m Total = 65.1 hours T equpim moving CEMDAS monitoring system closer to
malfunctions/Computer ving L .
faslure or offline. other operating monitors. lostalled new CEMS
system and software 8/17/2023.

Each failure to operate and maintain the CMS in accordance with the SSMP is
a violation of Specific Requirement 20 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V12,
40 CFR 63.7505(d)(4), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana
regulation in LAC 33:JIL5122.A, LAC 33:1I1.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1),
and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

D. In the 2023 Boiler MACT Semiannual Compliance Report, dated January 31,
2024 and the 2023 Title V Second Semiannual Monitoring Report, dated March
21, 2024, the Respondent rcported the failure to maintain the 30-day rolling

average oxygen content of McBurney Boiler No. 4/EQT0005, at or above the

lowest hoirly average oxygen level recorded ﬁunng the most recent boiler

performance test according to the requirements‘in 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD

Table 8, shown in. TabIeE o

101372023
12:00 AM - 11:00 PM
1071472023
2 | pooAM-1100pM | 23
) WISRR3 | .0 On 11/15/2023 while investigating a report,
* | 12:00 AM— 11:00 PM : from PPM that our 30-day 02 limit was
1011672023 .. exceeded, it was discovered that the 30-Cay
| nooam-upopm| 40 Yaintalh <3.3% OXYBEN/ | (2 atarm set point change didnt take wken
an and/or Draft control i . .
5 10/1822023 12,6 malfunction/Repair initially entered in PRISM, The set point
- | 12:00 AM— 1100 PM ' | was then changed to 8.3 and we took
. 1071572023 . actions to raise the Stack outlet O2 to get
- {1200 AM-1100pM | 138 the 30-day back in compliance.
7 107202023 21.4
< | 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM :
. 102172023 7
* | 12:00 AM— 11:00 PM :
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224

9. | 12:00 AM— 11:00PM
1072372023 |
10. 1 12:00 AM - 11:06 PM 64
L 1 12.00 AM = 1100 PM 104
2 | 12ooAM-100pm | 293
105265023 "
Bl po0am-nooem | 33
0272023 —
. | 2o0am-nioopM| 22
02872073
5- 1200 aM-1100eMm | 27
10295023 |
16. | 1mooam-it0opm| 27
- | 12:00 AM ~ 11:00 PM_ :
18 '13!'.31’2923 . ) 3.1
- | 12:00 AM'— 11:00 PM '
V%] _
9 | 1200am-1100pm| 120
11722023 .
20 | pooam-1100eM | 155
NAR0R3 . ,
2h | o am-1106pM | 161
/473023
2. | 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM 164
117572033
B | pooaM-noopm | 132
|, m_}ﬁ‘m“ A 133 On 11/15/2023 while investigating a report
- 11;'11_2025 from PPM that our 30-day O2 limit was
B | pooaM-1100em | 10 Maintain <8.3% Oxygen/ | Sicecded, it was discavered that the 30-Cay
02 alarm set point change didn’t take wken
117872023 - Fan and/or Draft control b . -
26. ) ; 214 malfunction/Repair initially entered in PRISM. The set point
12:00 %},—23300 M e P was then changed to 8.3-and we took
27, " 215 actions to raise the Stack outlet O2 to get
12:00 AM - 11:00 PM the 30-day back in compliance.
11/102023
8. | 2z00AM-11:00pM | 202
112023 |
B | 1200 aM-11:000m | 209
1171272023
0. 1200am-11:00pm| 173
111372023
-1 200 AM-1100em | 100
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1 r4nes

32 | 200 AM-11:00pm |  3®
1171572023

3.1 1200 aM-1100em | 06

Each failure to maintain the 30-day rolling average oxygen content at or above
the lowest hourly average oxygen level recorded during the most recent boiler
performance test is a violation of Specific Requirement 15 of Title V Air Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12,40 CFR 63 .7500(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:J1L.501.C 4, La. R.S.
30:2057(AX1), and La, R.S. 30:2057(AX2).

Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.

Prior to the issuance of any additional appropriate enforcement action, you may request a meeting
with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). If you would
like to have such a meeting, please contact Courtney Tolbert at 225-219-3347 or Courtney. Tolbert@la.gov
within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.

The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to: consider the gross revenues of the
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance in order to determine whether a penalty will be
assessed and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondents most current annual gross
revenuc statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited
violations to the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized
1o arrive at the sum. If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify this
statement. If the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross revenues
statement within ten (10} days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent
has the ability to pay the statutory maximum penaity as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties and
the right to seck compliance with its rules and regulations in any manner allowed by law, and nothing
herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties and compliance.

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpartl.Chapter 7. To expedite
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, the Respondent may offer a settlement amount
to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may offer a
settlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations. The
decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer amount
may be entered on the attached “NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO SETTLE"
form. The Respondent may submit the settlement offer within one hundred and eighty (180) days of receipt
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of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY. The Respondent must include a justification of the offer.
B_Q_N_Q_T_suhmtpaymcntofﬁw offer amount with the form. The Depmtment will review the settlement
offer and notify the Respondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted.

To reduce document: handling, please refer to the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency
Interest Number on the front of this document on all correspondence in response to this action.

Sincerely,

Jerry Langh
Assistant Secretary

Office of Environmental Compliance

JL/CIT/cjt _
AltID No. LA0000002212700006

c: West Fraser, Inc.
c/o Wayne Duperron, General Manager
PO Drawer 1 '
Joyce, LA 71440
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I.OUISIAHA Dﬂ’m G WMENTAL QUALITY

mm mlsnou HOT!CE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

POST OFFICE BOX 4312 REQUEST TO SETTLE (OPTIONAL)

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA m—an '

Enforcement Tracking No. Contact Name Courtney Tolbert

| Agency Interest (A1) No. Contact Phone No. 225-219-3347

Alternate D No.

Respondent: Facility Name: | Joyee Sawmill

Physical Location: | 6481 Louisiana Highway 34.

' _ﬂent for Service of Process 5
| 3867 Plaza Tower Dr.. City, State, Zip: _Joyce, LA 71440
.| Baton Rouge, LA?tms » . | Parish; . | Winn

!chetk the cpphcable optionj

The Respondent is not Interested in entering into seftiement negotiations with the separtment with the understanding that the
—— | Department has the dght to; assess civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpartl. Chapter7.

in order to resolve any daim for civii penaities for the violations in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-PP-23-00312), the
Respondent is interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to set up a mesting to
discuss settiement prooedures

The Respondent may submit the settiement offer within one hundred and eighty (180) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
— { POTENTIAL PENALTY tAE-PP-ZH)OBlZ)

in order to resolve any claim for cvil penalties for the violations in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-PP-24-00312), the
Respondent is interested in entering into settfement negotiations with the Department and offers to pay
$ which shall include LDEQ enforcernent costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance.
. Morletarv component = s
» ‘Beneficial Environmental Project {BEP}component {optional)= $
- » DO NOT SU ‘ OF THE THIS FORM- the Department will review the settlement offer and notify
the Respandent as to whether the offer is or ks ot occepted.

The Respondent. has reviewed the vioiations noted _in NU'I'_ICE OF POTENM!._FEHALT’! {AE-PP-24-00312} and has attached a
Justification of its:offer and a description of any BEPs i indluded in settiement offer.

I certlfy, under provisions in Loulsiano and United States law that provide criminal penaities for false stotements, that based on
information end belief formed ofter reasonable inquiry, the statéments and information attached and the compliance statement above,
ore true, accurote, and complete. | also certify that | do not owe outstanding fees or penvities to the Department for this faciiity or any
otﬁerfadﬂ!ylmwopem&.ifuzﬁwmt#rlﬂuﬂmdﬁmﬂakespmdentwanauthorbeﬂrepmsentaﬁuofmnespondem.

Respondent’s Signature Respondent’s Printed Name Respondent’s Title

Respondent’s Physical Address Respondent’s Phone # Date
MAIL COMPI.ETED DOCUMENT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW:

Lovislana Department of Environmerital Quafity
Office of Environmental Compliance
enforcement Division

P.O. Bax 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Attn: Courtney Tolbert




WHAT IS A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?
mmmmmmmmaamsmmmmm the Assistant Secretary of the Department,
with the concumrence of the Atiomey General, may enter info a setflement agreement with the Respondent as a means o
tesoive tha Depariment's claim for a penaity. :

HOW DOES THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT PROCESS WORK?

To begin the settiement agreement process, the Department must receive a writlen settiement offer. Once this offe” is
submitted, R is sent for approval by the Assistant Secretary of the Office of Environmental Compliance. The formal
SetﬂemmAgreemantls&aﬁed rldsemuameﬁﬁomeysemralsoﬁoewherememmeyeenera!hasa%day
concumence period. During this time, the :Respondent is required to run a public notice in an official joumal andior #
newspaper of general circulation in each affected parish. Afler which, a 45 day public comment period is opened to alow -
the public. to submit comments. Once the Department has received concurrence, the settiement agreement is signed by
both parties. The Department then forwards a letter to the responsible party to establish a payment plan and/or benefizial
environmental project (BEF).

WHAT SHOULD | INCLUDE IN A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?
The Department uses the penalty determination method defined in LAC 33:.705 as a guidefine to accepting settiemsnt |
offars. The penalty matrix is used to determine a penalty range for each violaion based on the two viclation specific factors,
the nature and gravity of the violation and the degree of risk/impact to human health and property.

Degree of Risk to Human Health or Property
M(wmhmummammwdmndmtmmwmmmﬁmmah&aﬂmm
by bigh volume andior frequent occurnence and/or high poliutant concentragon,
Modatate: (potendial formeasurable detimentd impact) A viclation of moderate impac! and hazard may be one characterized by occasional
ocourrence andior poiutart concentration that may be expected (o have a detrimental effect under certain conditions
Mm{mhmnuﬁdham}kvﬂﬁmofmmmﬁmwd&edsrgﬁemm and that cause no measurable detnmental effect or
ane administraive in nature.

Nature and Gravity of the Violation
Malor. Violations of statistes, requiations, orders, permit fimits, or permit requirements hat resutt in negafing the intent of the requirement to such
an exient that iie o noimplermentaion of requirsments occurred .
Moderste: Viciations that rosit in substantally negating the iment of the requirements, but same implementation of the tequirements occurred.
Minor; Viciaions that result in some deviaion from the intent of the requirement; however, substantial implementation is demonstraled,

The range is adjusted using the foliowing violator specific factors:
1. history of previous violations or repeated noncompliance;
2 gross reveniies generaiad by tha respondent,
3. dagres of culpablity, recaiciirance, defiance, or indifference to regulations of orders;
4, whether the Respondent has failed tn mitigate or b make a reasonable attempt fo mitigate the damages caused by the vidlation; and
5. whethier the viokation 3nd the surmunding circumstances were immediately reported to the depariment, and whether the
viotafion was concezled of thizre was an atiempt to conceal by the Respondent.




Given the previous informiation, the following formula is used fo obtain 2 penafty amount
Penalty Event Total = Penalty Event Minimum + (Adjustment Percentage  [Penalty Event Maximim - Perialty Event Minimum ]}

After this, the Department adds any monetary benefit of noncompiance to the penalty event. In the event that a monetary
benefit is gatned due o the delay of a cost that is utfimately paid, the Department adds the applicable judicial interest.
Finally, the Department adds all response costs including, but not limited to, the .cost of conducting inspections, and the
staff time devoted to the preparation of reports and issuing enforcement actions.

WHAT IS A BEP?
A BEP is a project that provides: for environmental mitigation which the respondent is not otherwise legally required to per-
form, but which the defendantf Jent agrees to undertake as a component of the setlement agreement.
Project categories for BEPs mclude pubiic health, poliistion prevention, poliution reduction, environmental restaration and
pmbchon assessments and audlts _environmental compliance promotion, and emergency planning, preparedness and
‘response. Other projects’ may be considered if the Department determines that these projects have environmental me:it
and is otherwise fully consistent with the intent of the BEP regulations.

WHAT HAPPENS IF MY OFFER IS REJECTED?

If an offeris re;ected bythe Assistant Secrétary, the Legal Division will contact the responsible party, or anyone
designated as an appropriate contact in the settiement offer, to discuss any discrepancies.
WHERE CAN | FIND E_XAHPLES AND MORE INFORMATION?
' searchable in EDMS using the following filters
Metfia: Air Cualy, Funchion: Enforcement; Description: Sef¥ement
. Enforcement Division's website
specific examples can be provided upon request
Method . . LAC 33| Chapter 7

Beneficial Envionmental Pipjects LAC 331 Chapter 25
FAQs

Judicial Interest ; : provided by the Louisiana State Bar Association






